
Planning Board 
Academy Building 
503 Province Road 

Gilmanton, New Hampshire 03237 
planning@gilmantonnh.org 

603.267.6700-Phone  603.267.6701-Fax 
 
 
 

Planning Board 
Minutes of the Meeting 
September 13, 2012 

 
 

Member Attendance Nancy Girard, Chair; John Funk, Vice-chair; Ralph Lavin, Select 
Rep.; Marty Martindale, Member; Wayne Ogni, Member; Laurie 
Sanborn, Member; John Weston, Member; Desiree Tumas, 
Administrator. 

 
Public Attendance  No public attended 
 
Open Meeting 
 

Call to Order @ 7:00 pm. 
Introduction of Board Members 
Explanation of Meeting Procedures 

 
Board Members discussed the Explanation of Meeting Procedures that is stated at the opening 
of every meeting.  In addition to the basics of how the meeting will proceed, the Board agreed to 
add that proper meeting decorum would be expected at all times.  Uncivil, rude, foul or 
interruptive language and or behavior would not be tolerated at any time. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 

1. August 9, 2012 – Regular Meeting 
 
M. Martindale moved to approve the August 9, 2012, Minutes of the Meeting as 
amended, J. Weston seconded the motion as stated; the motion carried with 6-
favorable votes and 1-abstained vote by J. Funk who did not attend the meeting. 
 
Discussions 
 

1. Dannie Gullage (127-27) 323 NH Rte 140 - Stone cutting business 
 
D. Tumas explained, on August 22, 2012, a neighbor submitted a formal complaint to the BOS 
regarding the ongoing business of stone cutting on the undeveloped property. 
 
On August 24, 2012, D. Gullage came to the Town Offices and it was explained that a site plan 
application needed to be filed.  Assistance with the application process was offered and the 
deadline to submit application was provided.  It was unknown if a driveway permit had been 
issued from NH DOT.  It was explained to D. Gullage that the change of use would have to be 
reported to NH DOT by-way of an amended driveway permit application from residential to 
commercial mixed use. 
 

 
Desiree Tumas, Administrator 
Mark Fougere, Certif. Planner 

Nancy Girard, Chair 
John Funk, Vice-chair 

Ralph Lavin, Select Rep 
Marty Martindale, Member 

Wayne Ogni, Member 
Laurie Sanborn, Member 
John Weston, Member 

 

Approved: 10/11/2012 



Planning Board 
Minutes of the Meeting 
September 13, 2012 
Page 2 of 6 
 
On September 10, 2012, D. Gullage again came to the Town Offices with a hand drawn site plan 
and nothing else.  Having been misinformed, (by someone, D. Gullage wished not to disclose) 
that he did not need to have a formal site plan and could just draw out the site plan. 
 
D. Gullage was obviously upset at the conflicting information and after much discussion 
regarding the misinformation pertaining to the application process and requirements, it was 
understood that application and site plan needed to be submitted. 
 
D. Gullage was given a copy of the Gilmanton Site Plan Regulations and the Site Plan 
Application requirements were tabbed.  The offer of assistance was again offered, and D. 
Gullage, stated that he would review the regulations and submit application. 
 
The Board went on to discuss the level of noise produced by the operation and it was noted that 
the original complaint included the excessive noise produced as well as environmental concerns, 
as a result of the operation. 
 
D. Tumas was able to locate BMP’s for stone cutting operations and will scan and email a copy to 
the Board. 
 
R. Lavin stated that he had gone by the site and observed that the operation, in his opinion did 
appear to be noisy. 
 
W. Ogni stated that he too had gone by the site and in his opinion, it was not excessively noisy. 
 
Board Members went on to discuss that there were at least 3 methods of cutting the stone being 
used and some do create more noise than others.  It might have been that the observations were 
made when different tools were being used. 
 
Board Members went on to discuss whether or not the operation was done solely by D. Gullage 
or if there were employees.  It was noted, persons other than D. Gullage did assist with the 
operation. 
 
Board Members discussed the level of assistance that is available to applicants.  D. Tumas 
explained that she is available to any person who request assistance.  If more assistance is 
needed than can be explained at the counter, a scheduled appointment for one on one assistance 
is offered. 
 
Following discussions, the Board would like a visual of the scope of the operation. 
 
N. Girard entertained a motion to request D. Tumas conduct a site visit with the Building 
Inspector to assess the scope of the operation. 
 
J. Funk moved to request the D. Tumas and the Building Inspector schedule a site 
visit with D. Gullage to assess the scope of the operation, J. Weston seconded the 
motion as stated; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
D. Tumas will contact D. Gullage and request a site visit with the Building Inspector and will 
again offer assistance to complete the application. 
 



Planning Board 
Minutes of the Meeting 
September 13, 2012 
Page 3 of 6 
 
N. Girard called for further discussion.  Hearing none, discussions were concluded. 
  

2. Zoning Ordinance – Planning & scheduling for proposed ordinances 
discussions 

 
Board Members discussed scheduling a work session specifically for discussion pertaining to 
proposed zoning amendments. 
 
R. Lavin noted that the BOS would like to revisit the septic setback requirements and the sign 
ordinance. 
 
Board Members agree to conduct the work session on Tuesday, October 16. 2012.  The work 
session will be called to order at 6:00 pm and adjourned at 8:00 pm.  The work session will be 
held upstairs at the Academy Building. 
 
Board Members request that Mark Fougere attend the meeting as well as extending an invitation 
to the BOS, ZBA, Con Com. 
 
D. Tumas explained that in addition to sending a request to attend the work session to the 
departments discussed; notice of the work session would also be posted at the Academy Building 
and both the I.W. & Corners Post Offices. 
 
J. Funk inquired about the sign ordinance and if signs, such as the one on NH Route 140 at the 
Gilmanton/Alton Town Line requires a permit. 
 
It was noted that according to the Zoning Ordinance, Article III, Section F-4: “Flashing, moving 
or portable signs are prohibited.” 
 
N. Girard called for further discussion.  Hearing none, discussions were concluded. 
 

3. Economic Development - Update 
 
D. Tumas explained she met with Stan Bean, the former President of the Economic 
Development Committee. 
 
After a lengthy discussion, it was concluded that at the time the EDC was formed and operating, 
it was a much different economic time. 
 
S. Bean believes with the current economic climate, it is the right time to reorganize the 
committee.   
 
Having just received the paperwork on the former EDC last week; there has been no time to 
review the previous operation and provide a summary to the Board. 
 
D. Tumas will read through the documentation and provide a summary at the October regular 
meeting. 
 
N. Girard called for further discussion.  Hearing none, discussions were concluded. 
 



Planning Board 
Minutes of the Meeting 
September 13, 2012 
Page 4 of 6 
 
Correspondence 
 

1. 2012 Law Lecture Series 
 
NH LGC is currently conducting the Fall Law Lecture Series.  It was suggested that new 
Members, W. Ogni and L. Sanborn attend the lecture,  Procedural Basics for Planning and 
Zoning Boards.  N. Girard and D. Tumas are registered for the lecture as well. 
 
W. Ogni and L. Sanborn were agreeable and will attend the lecture on September 26, 2012, at 
the Laconia Middle School, 7:00 pm to 9:00 pm. 
 
Registration for W. Ogni and L. Sanborn will be forwarded to LGC. 
 
N. Girard called for further discussion.  Hearing none, discussions were concluded. 
 

2. 71st LGC Annual Conference – November 14 & 15, 2012 – Information 
purposes only.  Registration and conference info will be forthcoming. 

 
3. LRPC “Granite State Future – Information purposes only 

 
4. Soil Erosion Control Workshop- There were no discussions taken up. 

 
Unscheduled Business 
 

1. 2013 Budget 
 
Request to review and submit the 2013 Budget were received after the Agenda had 
been posted. 
 
In reviewing the current budget, the Board noted that there was a $200.00 payment that is 
outstanding for four Board Members attending the NH LGC Law Lecture Series. 
 
Another pending expense under training is the upcoming LGC Conference, in November.   
 
Also noted was the minimal use of the Town Planner. 
 
D. Tumas explained the only application received to date was the recent BLA and there have 
been no technical reviews needed. 
 
Additionally noted was that although the services of the Planner have not been needed, to date.  
The Board will be requesting the Town Planner attend and assistance the Board to complete the 
2013 proposed zoning amendments.  As well as review and amendment of the both the Site Plan 
Review Regulations and the Master Plan. 
 
Following brief discussion, N. Girard entertained a motion to keep the Planning Board budget as 
it is for the upcoming 2013 fiscal year. 
 
 
 



Planning Board 
Minutes of the Meeting 
September 13, 2012 
Page 5 of 6 
 
M. Martindale moved to keep the Planning Board Budget as it is for the upcoming 
2013 fiscal year, W. Ogni seconded the motion as stated; the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

2. BMMC Contractor Yard-Update 
 
Counsel reply regarding the bankruptcy was received after the Agenda had been 
posted. 
 
D. Tumas explained she has received the formal written injunction from Attorney Whitley for 
the BMMC Contractor Yard matter. 
 
D. Tumas went on to explained, she had been told that R. Benson had filed for bankruptcy and 
that the process of the injunction was to impose fines to compel R. Benson to remove the 
remaining items from the BMMC Contractor Yard. 
 
Additionally, the potential bankruptcy filed by R. Benson; if confirmed, would relieve him of any 
obligation to pay fines imposed by the court.  As a result, the fines would then default to the 
property owner. 
 
Following discussion the Board concluded that in light of the bankruptcy filing, it would be 
counter-productive to impose fines on the property owner who permitted the use of the 
property. 
 
Board Members would like to send R. Benson a letter requesting he remove the remaining 
items.  The Board also requested a letter be written to the property owner explaining the action 
being taken by the Board. 
 
Board Members inquired what would become of the items that remained on the site. 
 
It was explained that once the operation has ceased, the matter becomes a civil issue between R. 
Benson and the property owner. 
 
A couple Board Members expressed a possible interest in the logs and fill that are on the site.  It 
was suggested that the property owner be contacted directly. 
 
Revisiting the bankruptcy element, the Board requested confirmation of the bankruptcy filing. 
 
N. Girard called for further discussion.  Hearing none, entertained a motion to rescind the 
request to move forward with the injunction, if the bankruptcy filing is confirmed. 
 
J. Funk moved to rescind the request to move forward with the injunction, 
provided the bankruptcy filing is confirmed, M. Martindale seconded the motion 
as stated; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Planning Board 
Minutes of the Meeting 
September 13, 2012 
Page 6 of 6 
 

3. 414-78 & 79 Wilkens, et al Boundary Line Adjustment 
 
The Boundary Line Adjustment Application was received after the Agenda had 
been posted. 
 
D. Tumas explained she had received a Boundary Line Adjustment Application.  The public 
hearing will be on October 11, 2012. 
 
The proposed BLA meets the requirements of the zoning ordinance and eliminates the setback 
non-conformity of the previously approved dog kennel operation. 
 
D. Tumas provided a copy of the proposed BLA and asked if the Board would like to conduct a 
site walk or conduct a technical review. 
 
Following brief discussion, the Board agreed by consensus that a site walk and technical review 
would not be necessary for the proposed BLA. 
 
N. Girard called for further discussion.  Hearing none, discussions were concluded. 
  
Adjournment 
 
N. Girard called for further business to come before the Board.  Hearing none, entertained a 
motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
M. Martindale moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:10 pm, J. Weston seconded the 
motion as stated; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Desiree Tumas 
Administrator 


